City	of	York	Council	
------	----	------	---------	--

**Committee Minutes** 

MEETING GAMBLING, LICENSING & REGULATORY

COMMITTEE

DATE 11 FEBRUARY 2013

PRESENT COUNCILLORS BOYCE (CHAIR),

DOUGHTY, GILLIES (VICE-CHAIR), HORTON, KING, LOOKER, MCILVEEN, ORRELL, REID, RICHARDSON, TAYLOR

**AND WATT** 

APOLOGIES COUNCILLORS GUNNELL, JEFFRIES AND

**SEMLYEN** 

#### 11. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST

At this point in the meeting, Members are asked to declare any personal, prejudicial or pecuniary interests they may have in the business on the agenda. None were declared.

#### 12. MINUTES

RESOLVED: That the minutes of the last meeting held

on 19<sup>th</sup> November 2012 be approved and signed by the Chair as a correct

record, subject to the following

amendment:

That the Chairs thanks to Members participating in Licensing Hearings be moved to the end of the minutes.

### 13. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION

It was reported that there had been no registrations to speak under the Councils Public Participation Scheme.

There was one registered speaker for agenda item 4, Mr. Crake. He spoke to advise that he had put in a request to the Taxi Licensing department for the Council to allow its taxis to use digital advertising. He stated that several Local Authorities had now approved use of digital advertising and he circulated details the 'Cabcast' system which is used to facilitate advertising

inside licensed vehicles by way of an adjustable universal fitting which will work in all vehicles.

# 14. ADVERTISING ON AND IN HACKNEY CARRIAGE AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES - DIGITAL MEDIA.

Members considered a report which asked them to consider revising the taxi licensing conditions in regard to advertising on and in hackney carriage and private hire vehicles.

The Licensing Manager advised that she had received a request for digital media to be used in taxis but no conditions were currently in place to deal with this. The councils existing conditions relating to taxi advertising were attached at annex 1 of the report, and Members attention was drawn to the suggested conditions attached at annex 2 relating to digital media technology.

Members queried a number of points with the registered speaker relating to the operation of the Cabcast system that he had spoke about. In particular they sought assurances that vehicle and road safety would not compromised by the installation of the equipment and that inappropriate advertising would not be shown via the system.

A Member raised concerns relating to the development of technology and suggested that it would be useful to require a condition which asks for all systems to be approved by the Council prior to installation into a vehicle.

Members also asked that the driver be able to have the master control and the ability to switch off any advertising.

## RESOLVED:

- (i) That Option 1 be approved and that digital advertising should be available for York's licensed vehicles subject to the conditions already in place as outlined at Annex 1 and the additional conditions in Annex 2.
- (ii) That the additional safeguards suggested by Members as outlined above be added to the conditions relating to digital media.<sup>1</sup>

REASON: To enable York's Licensed Vehicles to

use technology that is available.

**Action Required** 

Amend suggested digital media conditions to reflect

Members comments.

LC

# 15. ADVERTISING ON AND IN HACKNEY AND PRIVATE HIRE VEHICLES - REAR WINDOW STICKERS.

Members considered a report which asked them to consider revising the conditions relating to advertising on and in hackney carriage and private hire vehicles, specifically in relation to rear window stickers.

The Licensing Manager outlined the report and advised that currently taxis are allowed advertising on the bodywork of the vehicle, internally and in the rear window.

The wording of the condition relating specifically to rear window stickers is vague and officers have been using their discretion as to whether the size of an advertising sticker is appropriate so as not to obscure the driver's visibility out of the rear window and responsible authorities ability to see into the vehicle.

Officers asked that either any reference to rear stickers be removed from the conditions and replaced with a condition to state that no advertising is permitted or the current condition be reworded to clearly indicate the size of the advertising sticker and the location on the window where it can be displayed.

Following discussion, Members agreed that it was not unreasonable for licensed vehicles to have a small sticker and agreed that the condition relating to windows stickers be reworded.

RESOLVED: That Members approved Option 1 and

instructed officers to reword the

condition relating to advertising in the rear windows of licensed vehicles.<sup>2</sup>

REASON: To make the requirements for

advertising in the rear window easier for

both the trade and officers to

# understand/enforce and ensure consistency across the taxi fleet.

## **Action Required**

2. Amend taxi licensing conditions to include reworded condition relating to rear window stickers.

LC

Councillor Boyce, Chair [The meeting started at 4.00 pm and finished at 4.30 pm].